“Azarbaycan Xezar Deniz Gamigiliyi” Qapali Sehmdar Coemiyyatinin 2022-ci il iizre illik idareetma hesabati

1 | Emitentin tam ve qisaldilmis adi, vergi 6dayicisinin “Azarbaycan Xazar Daniz Gamigiliyi” Qapali
eynilssdirma némrasi (VOEN), dévlst geydiyyatinin Sehmdar Ceamiyysti, QSC, ASCO , VOEN:
tarixi vo nomrasi 1701579951, 31.01.2014 ,

2 | Emitentin hliqugi tnvani va oldugu yer Huqugi unvan va Faktiki Gnvan: Baki saheri, Sabail

rayonu, Mikayill Useynov kig¢ 2, Baki 1003
Emitentin adinda dayisiklikler oldugda, emitentin butin Ceamiyyatin adi ve ya teskilati-hiiquqgi formasi
avvalki adlari, habels onlarin geydiyyata alindidi tarixler, | deyisdiriimamisdir.
emitent digar hiiqugi sexsin bélinmasi ve ya terkibindan
ayrilmasi saklinds yenidan taskil yolu ile yaradildiqda,
yenidan teskilin formasi, hamin hiiqugi sexsin adi,
emitent hliquqi sexslarin birlegsmasi ve ya ¢evrilma
saklinds yenidan taskil yolu ile yaradildiqda,
yenidan teskilin formasi, hamin hiiquqi sexslerin adlari

4 | Emitentin hesabat dévri erzinde yaranmis ve lagv Yoxdur
edilmis filiallari ve nimayandsaliklerinin adi,olduglari
yer va qeydiyyatlari hagqinda malumatlar

5 | Emitentin hesabat doévrl arzinde yaranmis ve ya Yoxdur
lagv edilmis har bir térama cemiyyatinin adi, teskilati-
hiqugi formasi, hiiqugi tnvani, geydiyyati hagqinda
malumatlar, nizamnama kapitalinda emitentin payi,
haqugi saxsin emitentin tdrema cemiyyasti hesab
olunmasi Ugln asas olan mugqavilenin baglanma tarixi
va quivvada olma muiddati

6 | Emitent sirkatlar qrupunun bir hissasi oldugu teqdirda Ceamiyyat heg bir grupa daxil deyil
grupun (emitent daxil olmagla igtisadiyyatin muxtalif
sahalarinde faaliyyat gostaran bir ve ya daha artiq
térama teskilati olan qrupdur) adi

7 | Emitentin masgdul oldugu faaliyyat istigamatlari Daeniz naqliyyati Gzre fealiyyst

8 | Emitent lisenziya va ya icazaya malik oldugda, onlar Yoxdur
Uzre fealiyyat novleri ve quvvada olma miuddatleri

9 | Emitentin taklif etdiyi mahsullar ve xidmatler Yulkdasimalar, ixtisaslagsmis ofsor xidmatlarinin

gOsterilmasini, gami tamiri

10 | Emitentin isgilarinin sayi va onun riblik dinamikasi 7957 nafer, riblik dinamikasi — 0

11 | Emitentin idareetma organlari hagqinda malumat: Musahide Surasinin Gzvleri: Samir Rauf oglu

direktorlar surasi (musahida surasi) (oldugda), icra
orqani, audit komitasi (oldugda), onlarin tzvlarinin adi,
soyadl, atasinin adi

Serifov, Matin Balasen oglu Eynullayev, Xeyyam
Mammadov, Rehman Dursun oglu Himmsatov, Viqar
Sabir oglu Macidli

idare Heyatinin Uzvleri: Rauf Géyiis oglu Vasliyev,
Mibariz Mustafa oglu Cabbarov, Calal Hesenaga
oglu Faracli, Nezreddin Murad oglu ©hmadzada,
Caobrayil idris oglu Mahmudlu, Zaur Resul oglu
Nagiyev, Tariyel Taleh ogdlu Mirzayev

Audit Komitesinin Uzvleri: Cahangir Ramiz oglu
Rzayev, Matin Balasen oglu Eynullayev, Xayyam
Faxraddin oglu Memmadov




12 | Emitentin fiziki ve hliquqi sexs olan sehmdarlarinin Azarbaycan Xazar Daniz Gamigiliyinin 100% sehmi
(paygcilarinin) ayri-ayiliqda sayi Azarbaycan Respublikasina maxsusdur.
13 | Emitentin nizamnama kapitalinin bes faizi ve daha Azarbaycan Xezar Daniz Gamigiliyinin 100% sahmi

artig hacmda sasli sehmlarine (paylara) malik olan
soxsler (fiziki sexsin soyadi, adi, atasinin adi;
hliqugi sexsin adi, oldugu yer ve VOEN-i), onlarin
har birinea maxsus olan sehmlarin sayi (sehmlarin
har névi Uzre ayri-ayriligda goéstarilir) ve emitentin
nizamnama kapitalinda payi

Azarbaycan Respublikasina maxsusdur.

14

Nizamnamsa kapitalinda emitentin payi bes faizden
az olmayan huqugi sexsler (hiiqugi sexsin adl,
oldugu yer, VOEN-i, nizamnama kapitalinda
emitentin pay1)

Azarbaycan Xazar Daniz Gamigiliyinin 100% sahmi
Azarbaycan Respublikasina mexsusdur.

15

Emitentin sshmdarlarinin (paygilarinin) hesabat
dovri arzinde kegirilmis yigincaqglari barade
malumat:

- yigincagin kegirilma tarixi va yeri (invan)

- Umumi yigincaqda gabul edilmis gararlar

- 29.06.2022; Baki sehaeri; Mikayill Useynov 2 ,ASCO-
nun 2022-2030-cu illeri shate edan strategiyasinin
konseptual olaraqg magbul hesab edilmasi,

- 02.09.2022; Baki gahari; Mikayil Useynov 2 ,ASCO-nun
2023-cu il ve sonraki 3 il Gglin buidce prognozunun
maqbul hesab edilmasi,

- 16.09.2022; Baki sahari; Mikayil Useynov 2 ,3 adad
Aframax tipli geminin aliginin maliyyalasdiriimasi
maqsadile 150 milyon ABS dollari mablaginda
istigrazlarin buraxiimasinin magbul hesab edilmasi,

- 27.12.2022; Baki gahari; Mikayil Useynov 2 ,2023-cl
ilde 15% amak haqqi artimi taklifinin magbul hesab
edilmasi,

16

Emitentin dovriyyada olan investisiya giymatli
kagizlarinin buraxilislari hagginda mealumat
(investisiya giymatli kagizlarin har buraxiligi ayri-
ayrihqgda gosterilir

-investisiya qiymatli kagizin névl ve formasi;
-investisiya qiymatli kagizlar buraxilisinin dévlst
geydiyyat némrasi va geydiyyat tarixi;

- Faizli temin edilmamis, senadsiz adl istiqrazlar

1) AZ2001019341; 30.03.2023; nominal dayari

1000 (bir min) ABS dollari; miqgdari 100 000(bir yuz
min adad); illik faiz darecesi 6 (alt) ; “Baki Fond
Birjas1” QSC (Baki sehaeri, Yasamal rayonu, Hasan
bay Zardabi kug. 2A, AZ1141).

Faizli tamin edilmamis istiqrazlar , senadsiz adli

Ne 6-1-22/2-1497/2023 ,30 mart 2023

Hesabat ili arzinde sshmlar Gizre 10 milyon AZN
mablaginds dividend ddanilmisdir.




investisiya giymatli kagizlar buraxilisiniin macmu nominal
dayeri

- investisiya giymatli kagizlar buraxiliginiin macmu
nominal dayari

- hesabat ili arzinds emitent tersfinden sshmlar lizra
6danilmis dividendlar hagginda malumat (hesabat ilinda
sehmlarin har névii tzre 6danilmis dividendlarin mablagi
gOstoerilir;

- faizli istigrazlar buraxilisi hagginda malumatda -
istigrazlar tzra galirliyin illik faiz deracasi;

- investisiya giymatli kagizlarin yerlosdirildiyi ve ya
tedavulds oldugu fond birjasinin adi ve oldugu yer
(olduqda)

Macmu nominal dayari 1000 (bir min) ABS dollari

“Baki Fond Birjasi” QSC (Baki sahari, Yasamal
rayonu, Hasan bay Zerdabi kii¢. 2A, AZ1141)

17 | Emitent tarsfinden baglaniimis xisusi shamiyyatli aqdlar | Yoxdur
barade malumatlar:
- aqdin mablagi;
- hesabat tarixine aqdin 6danilmamis hissesi.
18 | Emitent terafindan aidiyyeati sexslarle baglaniimis aqdler Yoxdur
barads malumatlar:
- baglaniimis aqdin mahiyyati, tarixi vo mablagi;
- aidiyyeti sexs barade malumat ve emitentle
aidiyyat alagasi.
19 | llik hesabatin tesdiq edildiyi Gmumi yigincagin tarixi 13 iyun 2023

20

Hesabatin agiglanma manbayi haqqinda malumat

Www.asco.az
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Independent auditor's report

To Management and Supervisory Board of
“Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping” Closed Joint-Stock Company

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of “Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping” Closed
Joint-Stock Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group™), which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022 and its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSS).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs).

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ (IESBA)
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence
Standards) (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of

the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.

The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial

statements.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Revenue recognition

We identified revenue recognition as one of

the matters of most significance in our audit
because the amount of revenue is significant to
the consolidated financial statements.

In addition, revenue recognition is a complex
process given significant volume of transactions
and a number of different revenue streams.

Information regarding revenue is disclosed
in Notes 2 and 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

We analysed the Group's accounting policy in
respect of revenue recognition and obtained
understanding of the Group's revenue streams.

For time charters, on a sample basis, we
recalculated the revenue by multiplying

the number of days indicated in acts of
acceptance by rates indicated in service
agreements and compared to the amount of
revenue recognized by the Group.

For voyage charters, on a sample basis, we
recalculated the revenue by multiplying freight
rates and tons of cargo indicated in bills of lading
and compared the results to the amount of
revenue recognized by the Group.

On a sample basis, we obtained confirmations of
accounts receivable balances from customers.

We analysed disclosure of revenue in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Assessment of indications of impairment of non-current assets

We considered this matter as one of the matters We analysed management’s assessment of
of the most significance in our audit due to the  whether there was any indication of potential

significance of non-current assets as at impairment of non-current assets. We analysed
31 December 2022 and the subjectivity of the available information and assessed whether
judgements and estimates made by there were observable indications that the assets
the Management in respect of assumptions used value may have declined significantly.

in the impairment indications analysis. We assessed whether there were significant
Significant assumptions used in impairment changes with adverse effect on the Group during
indications analysis include future capital the year. Particularly, we compared the Group's
requirements, operating performance as well actual performance to the planned operating

as estimated discount rate. performance to identify any significant

The Management analyzed indications of deviations.

impairment and did not identify any external or We assessed whether the market interest rates

internal factors triggering impairment of and the Group's current weighted average cost of

non-current assets as of 31 December 2022. capital increased during the period.

Information regarding analysis of indications of We searched for any available evidence of

impairment of non-current assets is disclosed physical damage of the assets. We compared

in Note 3 to the consolidated financial actual capital expenditures incurred by the Group

statements. to the planned capital expenditure to identify any
significant delays or deviations.

We also assessed the disclosure in the
consolidated financial statements about the
Group's impairment analysis.

Responsibilities of management and audit committee for the consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing

the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence

the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

> Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

> Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control;

> Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management;

> Conclude on the appropriateness of management'’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern;

> Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation;

> Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

A mamber firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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We communicate with the Audit Committee, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions are taken to eliminate threats or safequards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The partner in charge of the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Nargiz
Karimova.

W&MM (CIS) B

13 June 2023

Baku, Azerbaijan

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited



“Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping” CJSC Consolidated financial statements

Consolidated statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2022

(Amounts presented are in thousands of Azerbaijani Manats unless otherwise stated)

31 December 31 December

Notes 2022 2021
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6 34,353 6,312
Restricted cash 6 406 98
Trade and other receivables 7 232,597 243171
Taxes receivable 8 10,187 14,670
Short-term prepayments 9 6,558 9,600
Inventories 10 36,413 45,914
Total current assets 320,514 319,765
Non-current assets
Vessels, property, plant and equipment 13 964,264 951,125
Intangible assets 4,566 4,876
Right-of-use asset 14 9,153 11,441
Long-term prepayments 9 36,919 4,001
Total non-current assets 1,014,902 971,443
Total assets 1,335,416 1,291,208
Equity
Share capital 15 440,051 440,051
Additional paid-in capital 15 129,100 99,100
Retained earnings 604,539 549,098
Total equity 1,173,690 1,088,249
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables M 37,900 69,416
Other taxes payable 19 38,008 49,233
Corporate income tax payable 19 11,102 7,140
Short-term loans and current portion of long-term loan 12 4,499 4,553
Lease liabilities 14 2,594 13,824
Contract liabilities 16,662 8,700
Total current liabilities 110,765 152,866
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities 20 34,123 26,848
Long-term loan 12 4235 8,469
Lease liabilities 14 7,797 9,200
Other non-current liabilities 11 4,806 5,576
Total non-current liabilities 50,961 50,093
Total liabilities 161,726 202,959
Total equity and liabilities 1,335,416 1,291,208

Signed and authorized for release on behalf of the Group on 13 June 2023.

~dh - _ AL dld,

Mr. Rauf Valiyev Mr. Jalal Faraili

\

Chairman Deputy Chairman on Economic Issues

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




“Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping” CJSC Consolidated financial statements

Consolidated statement of_profit.or loss and other comprehensive income
For the year eénded 31 December 2022

fAmounts presented. are i thousands of Azerbaijani Manals unless otherwise s{ate_dj

Notes 2022 2021

Revenue 16 570,071 459,133
Cost of sales 17 (369,444). (308,069)
Gross profit 200,627 153,064
General and administrative expenses 17 (52,159). (39,962)
Social expeénses: 17 {8.,575) (7,124)
Other opéerating ircome: 241 32,827 21,757
Other operating expenses _ 17 (70,172} (65,840)
{(Expected credit losses (‘ECL"YECL reversal 17 {8,249) 7.212°
Loss on disposal of vessels, preperty, plantand equipment _ _

and intangible assets {178) (740)
Foreign exchange loss . {829) {77y
Operating profit. 93,295 68,290
Finance costs (1.222) {(1,735)
Profit before income tax 92,073 66,555
Income tax expense 20 {26,632) (14,763)
Profit for the year 65,441 51,792
‘Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 65,441 51,792

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



“Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping” CJSC Consolidated financial statemenits

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year-ended 31 December 2022

{Amounts presénted are in.thousands of Azeibaijani Manhats- unless otherwise stated}

Share- Additional Retained
. capital paid-in.capital earnings Total

B’a!ance'at1 January 2021 440,051 90,000 502,306 1,032,357
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 51,792 - 51,792
Increase in additional paid-in capital _

(Note 15) - 9,100 - 9,100
Dividends - - (5,000) (5,000)
Balance at 31 Decemiber 2021 440,051 99,100 549,098 1,088,249
Total comprehensive income for the year - ~ 65,441 65,441
Increase in additional paid-in capital _
{Note 15) - 30,000 - 30,000
Dividends - ~ (10,000 {10,000)
Balance at 31 December 2022 440,051 129,100 604,539 1,173,690

The accompanying notes form an integrai part of these consolidated financial s_tafement_s-.



“Azerbajjan Caspian Shipping” CJSC Consolidated financial statements

Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2022

{Amounts presented are in thousands of Azérbaijani Manats unless otherwise slated)

Notes 2022 2021

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax: 82,073 66,555
Adjfustments for:
Depreciation of vessels, property, plant and equipment and

right-of-use assets: ' 13,14 96,174 81,095
Amortisation of intangible assets 17 887 818
ECL/ (ECL reversal) 17 8,249 (7,212)
{Reversal)/allowance for inventories 17 {1,282) 6,171
Foreign exchange differences 776 221
Loss on disposal of vesséls, property,plant and equipment _

and intangible assets ' 175 740
Finance costs 1,222 1,735
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 198,274 150,123
Decrease in trade and other receivables 2,435 5,484
Decrease/ (increase) in inventories 10,783 {6,514}
Decrease/(increase) in prépayments 7,044 (6,389)
Decréase in taxgs receivable 4,483 373
(ncrease)/decrease in restricted cash- (308) 1
Decrease in trade and other payables (2,510) {10,604}
Decrease in other non-turrent liabilities {770) {758)
Increase in.contract liabilities 7.964 5,283
{Decrease)/increase. in taxes payable {13,492) 12,288
Cash generated from operations ' 213,803 149,289
Income taxes paid 19,20 (13,128) (6,408)
Interest paid _ (854) (884)
Net cash flows from operating activities _ 199,921 141,996
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of vessels, property, plant and equipment (173,548) (121,794)
‘Purchase of intangible assets- (577} {1,229)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (174,125) {123,023}
Cash flows from financing activities _
Repayment of long-term loans 12 (4.235) (4,235)
Repayment of shori-term Iaans 12 - {14,100)
Dividend paid to sharehoider {10,000) (5,000)
Increase in additicnal paid-inh capital 15 30,000 9,160
Payment of lease fiability ' {12,633) (2,248)
Net cash flows from/{used in} financing activities _ 3,432 (16,483)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents. 28,828 2,490
‘Net foreign exchange difference (887) (921)
‘Cash and cash equivalents. at the beginning of the year 6 6,312 4,743
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 34,353 6,312

The accompanying notes form an fnte:graf part of these.cansolidated financial statements.,



Notes to the consolidated financial statements.

“Azerbaijan Caspian-Shipping” CJSC forthe year ended 31 December 2022

(Amounts presented are in thousands of Azerbaijani Manats uniess otherwise stated)

1. The Group and its operations

“Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping” Closed Joint Stock Company:.(the “Company®) was established by merging

the Azerbaijan State Caspian Sea Shipping Company ( “ASCSC") and the Caspian Sea Ojl Fleat (*CSOF™ of

the State Qil Company of Azerbaijan Republic (SOCAR) in accordance with the Decree No. & of

the President of Azerbaijan Republic, dated 22 October 2013 On Estab,’rshmenr of *Azerbaljan Caspiarn:

Shipping” Ciosed Joint-Stock Comipany and Decree No, 213, dated 10 January 2014, On Organization of

Activity of "Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping” Closed Jaint-Stock Company.. Two companies were merged in order

to continue fundamental structural reforms in the économy; increase dormestic and international transportatlon

in. maritime industry, enhance competitiveness and transit potential of Azerbaijjan and get synergies from
centralized management of the state-owned shipping companies.

The Company and its subsidiaries are together referred to as “the Group” in these consolidated financial
statements and the consolidated financial statements of the Group.include the following SUbSidEaFIES

% equity interest

Name 2022 2021
Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping CJSC 100 100
Azerbaijan State Marine Academy _ _ 100 100
Caspian-Sea Transport Project Research and Scientific Investigation _

Institute 100 100
Azerbaijan Marine College 100 100
Danizchi Housing Cooperative 96 96
ASCO Logistics LLC 100 100
ASCO Dry Ship Management Inc. 100 100
ASCO Tankers Ship Management Inc. 100 100
Yacht Club LLC: 100 100
ASCO Security LLC 100 100
Caspian Shipping Ltg LLC 100 100
Caspian Seg Engineering Bureau LLC 51 51
ASCQO Transportation LLC 100 100
Danizchi Repair-Construction LLC 100 100

The Group comprises the offshore: support and merchant fleets, two shipyards, production support entities
providing logistics services, maritime education, implementation of reparr censtruction, installation and design
works with near to 6, 973 of full-time employses. The Group is 100% owned by the Government of
the Republic of Azerba_uan (the "Government”),

On 11 February 2021 the President of the Republic of Azerbaijan signed amendments to the decree dated
10 January 2014 On the Organization of the Activities of the Azerbaifan Caspian Shipping Closed Joini-Stock
Company to define responsibilities and duties of Azerbaijan Investment Holding in respect of the Groug.

On 22 February 2021 the Président of the Republic of Azerbaijan signed a decree approving composition of
the Supetvisory Board of the Company consisting of a Chairman. and four members.

The registered address of the Group is Nefichilar' Avenle 2, Baku, Azerbaijan.

2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting. policies
Basis of preparation

The Group's consolidated-financial statéments have been prepared in accordance with Interational Financial
Reporting Standards {(IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) The principal
accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidatéd financial statemenis are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented: All amounts in these consolidated
financial statements are presented in thousands of Azerbaijani Manats ("AZN"), except when otherwise stated.
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_ _ Notes.to the consolidated financial statements
*Azerbaljan Caspian Shipping” CJSC for the year ended 31 December 2022

-as at 31 Decemiber 2022,

(Amaunis presented are in thousands of Azerbaijani Manats unless otherwise Stated)

2. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of preparation (continued)

The Group has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate: as a going
concerp. '

Basis for consolidation

‘The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entitiés. over which the Group has control, being the power to govern the financial and
operating poiicies so as to obtain benefits from its activities, generally @ccempanying a shareholding of more
than one half of the voting rights. Specifically, the' Group centrols an investee'if, and anly if, thie Group has:

> Power over the investee {i.e., existing rights that give it the currenit ability to direct the relevant activities
‘of the investee); '

- Exposure, orrights, to variabile returns from its involvement with the investee;

- The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

The Group re-assesses whiether or not it controls investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are

‘thanges te one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a-subsidiary begins when the Group

obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses coritrol of the subsidiary. Assets,
liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated financial statements froni the date the Group gains controt until the date the Group ceases. td
control the subsidiary, '

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring. thair accaunting

policies into'line with the Group's accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,

expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consalidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without-a loss of contral, is accounted for as-an equity
transaction. '

i the Group ioses:control over a-subsidiary, it derecognises thé related assets (including goodwil; liabilities,
non-controlling interest arid othér companents of equity, while any resultarit gain or loss is recognised in-profit
or loss.-Any investment retained is recoghised at fair value.

Current ver_s"us_non_-current classification

The Group présents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statément of financial pesition based on current/
non-current classification. An asset as-currentwhen it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

> Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting pericd; or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settlea iiability for at least

twelve months after the reparting period..

All other assets are classified as nor-current.




Notes to the consolidated financial statements
“Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping” CJSC for the year ended 31 December 2022

(Amounts presented are i thousands:of Azerbaijfani Mahats ufifess otherwise stated)

2, Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (continued)
Currerit versus rnon-current classification (continued)

A liability is current when:

- itis expected to be settled in-normal.operating cycle;
- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
> it is due to be settied within twelve months after the reporting: period; or

> There is no unconditional right to defer the settlernent of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

‘The Group classifies all otheér liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax asséts and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities:
Business combinations

Business:combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost-of an acquisition is measured

as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date falr value and the amount of

any. non-controlling interest in the acqmree For each business combination, the acquirer measures
the non-contrelling interest in the acquiree either at fair value of at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s

identifiable net assets. Acquisition'costsincurred are expensed and included in administrative expenses. When

the Greup acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities ‘assumed for dappropriate

classification and designation in accordance with the contractualterms, economiic circumstances and pettinent
gonditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts
by the acquirge.

If the business cembination is achieved in stages, the acquisitioh date fair value of the acquirer's. prewously

‘held equity interest in'the acquiree is remeasured to-fair value at the acquisition date through profit or [oss,

Business cofmbinations with entities under common control

The Group applies acquisition method of accounting for business combinations with entities under the common

.control.

Foreign currency transfation

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries is the national currency of
the Azerbaijan Republic, AZN as the majority of the Group’s revenues, costs, inventory purchased, and trade
liabilities are either priced, incurred, payabie or otherwise measured in AZN,

The operations in the Group entities of which currency differ from the functional currency of the Group and not

already measured in the Group's functional currency are translated.by following the beléw steps:

> Monetary assets and liabilities not already measuréd in the. functional currency of respective Group
entity are translated into the functional currency at the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

- Income and expenses for each statement of profit o loss and other comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income ahd expenses
are transiated at the dates of the transactions).

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the re- -measurement into the functional currencies of

respective Group’s entities .are recognized in the: consclidated statement of profit or loss or other
comprehehsive. income.
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o . Notes to the consolidated financial statements
“Azerbaijan Caspian _Shipping" CJsc for the year ended 31 Decenibier 2022

(Amounts presented are in thousands of Azerbaijani Manats unless otherwise stated)

2. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currency translation (c‘o_ntinued}

At 31 December 2022 the principal rate of exchange: used for transiating foreign. currency balances was:
USD 1 = AZN 1.7000, EUR 1'= AZN 1.8114, RUB 1= AZN 0. 0230, TRY 1 =AZN 0.0909 (31 December2021;
USD 1= AZN 1.7000; EUR 1 = AZN 1.9265, RUB 1 = AZN 0. 0229, TRY 1 = AZN 0.1329).

Financial instruments — key measurement terms

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Depending on their classification financial instruments are carried at fair value, oramortized cost as described
below,

Fair value is the price that would be recéived to sell an asset or paid to transfer a ||ab|1|ty m an ordetly

transaction bétween market parficipants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on

the presumption that the transaction to sell the. asset or transfer the Ilablitty takes’ place either:
> In the principal market for the asset or liability; or

> In the absence of a principal market, in the-._most_ advantag‘eou_s“market for the asset or liabiity.

‘The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset

or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset.or
liability, assuthing that market’ partimpants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account'a market participant’s ability to generate

‘economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to anothef market patticipant

that would use the asset In its highest and hest use,

The Group uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the. circumstances and for which sufficient data
is available to measure fair value, maximising the:use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of-
unchservable inputs.

All assets-and liabilities for which fair valueis measured of disciosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair vaiue hierarchy, described as follows, based on'the lowest level input that is significant to tha fair
vajue measurement as a'whole:

. Level 1 - quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets of liabilities;

- Level 2 - valuation téchniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair vaiue
measurement is directly orindirectly observable;

- Level 3 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobsérvable.

For assetis and liabilities that are recognlsed In the financial statements-on a recurring basis, the Group

determlnes whether transfers have ocourred hetween Levels in the hlerarchy by re-assessing -categorisation

(based on the lowest level input.that'is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of éach

reporting period,

Costis the amount.of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the other consideration given to acquire
an asset at the time of its acquisition and includes transagction costs. Measurement at cost is only applicable
to investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price and whose fair value cannot be
refiably measured,



N Notes to the consolidated financial statements-
“Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping” CJSC for the year ended 31 December 2022

(Amounts presented are in thousands: of Azerbaijani Manats uriless.otherwise stated)

2. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial _instfument_s —~ key measurement terms {continued)

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributabie to. the acquisition; issue or disposal of
afinancial instrument. An iricremental cost is one that would hot have been incurred if the transaction had not
taken place. Transaction costs include:fees and commissions paid to agents (including employees acting as
selling ‘agents), advisors, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and securities exchanges, and
transfer taxes and duties. Transaction costs do not include debt prémiums or discounts, financing costs of
internai administrative or helding costs,

Amortised cost is.the armourit at which the financial instrument was recognised at initia! recognitien less any
principal répaymenits, plus accrued interest, ‘and for financial assets less any allowance for expected credit-
losses. Accrued interest includes amortisation of transaction costs. deferred at initial recognition and. of any
premium or discount to the: maturity amount using the effective interest method.-Accrued interest income and
accrued interest expense, including both accrued coupon and amortised discount or premium (including fees
deferred at origination, if any), are not presented separately and are included in the ‘carrying values of
the related items in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The effective interast method is a method of allocating iriterest income or-interest expense over the refevant
period, so-as to achieve a constant periodic rate of interest (effective interest rate) on the carrying amount,
The effective interest rate is. the rate that exactly- discounts estimated. future cash payments or receipts
(excludmg future credit Iosses) through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, if
appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial instrument. The effective interest rate discounts cash
flows of variable interest instruments to the next interest repncmg date, except for the premium or discount
which refiects the credit spread over the floating rate specified in the instrument, or other variables that are not
reset to. market rates, Such premiums or discounts are amortised over the whole expected life of
the instrument. The present vaiue calculation includes all fees paid or received between partiés to the contract
that are-an integral part of the effective interest rate. For assets that are purchased’ ororiginated: creditimpaired
{"POCI") at initial recognition, the effective interest rate is adjusted for credit risk, i.e. it is calculated based on
the expected cash flows on initial recognmon instead of contractual payments.

Financial assets
Anitial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive jncome (OC)}, and fair value through.profit or loss:

The classification of financial assets at initial recogrition depends on the financial asset’s contractuai cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business mode! for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value pius, in the case of & financial asset
not at faif value through profit er loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing cornponent or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at
the transaction price determined under IFRS 15,

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost, it heeds to give riseto cash flows
that are 'solely- payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding, This
assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and.is performed at-an instrument level,

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to-generate cash flows. The business model determings whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both:.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that reglire cle!wery of assets withina time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date;i.e., the date
that the. Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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_ Notes to the consolidated financial statements
“Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping” CJSC for the yeay ended .31 December 2022

{Amounts presented are in thousands of Azerbaijani Manats unless otherwise stated)

2. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies {¢ontinued)
Financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

~  Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments);

> Financial asséts at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumuiative gains and losses (debt
instruments);

. ‘Financial assets designated at fair value through OCi with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses

‘upon derecognition (equity instrumerits);
. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
This categery is the most relevant to the Group. The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both
of the foilowing conditions are met:

» The financial asset is held within a business model with the.objective to-hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

2 The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on 5pe___c’i'ﬁed dates to cash flows that are solely
payments.of principal and interest on the prinicipal amount outstanding,

Financial assets at-:am_or_t_i'se_cj cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR)_.mefhod and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired,

The Group's financial assets at amortised cost includés trade receivables.

The Group measures debt instruments at fair value through OCI if both of the following conditions are met:

. The financial asset is held within a businéss nmodel with the cbjective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling; and

»> The-contractual terms of the financial asset give rise en specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest.on the principal amount cutstanding. '

For debt instruments at fair value through OC, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment
losses or-reversals arg recogrised in the consolidated statéement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and.computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amoftised cost. The remaining.
fairvalue changes are recogniséd in OCI. Upon derecognition, the curnulative fair value changerecognised in
OClis recycled to profit or loss.

The Group has no debt instrurnents at fair value through QC|.

Financial assets desigriated at fair value through OC! {equity instriments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irevocably its equity investments- as equity
instrumenits designated at fair value through OCH when they meet the definition of “equity under IAS 32
Financial Instruments. Presentation and are ot held for trading. The classification is determined on an

instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss, Dividends are recognised as’
other income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income wher the right.

of payment has been established, except when the Group benefits from such praceeds as a recovery of part.

ase, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated

of the cost of the financial asset, in'which

‘at fair value through OC! are not subjéct to impairment assessment.

10
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
“Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping” CJSC -for'the year ended 31 December 2022

(Amounts presented are in thousands of Azerbidljani Manats unfess ofheérwise stated)

2, Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (continued)
Finaricial assets {continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit orloss

Financial assets at:fair value thréugh profit or joss inciude financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required
to be measured at fair value. Financial assets. are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for
the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term:. Derivatives, inéluding séparated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as.effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at

fair value through - profit-or loss, ‘irfespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt

instruments. to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI, as described above, debt
instruments may be designated at fair valué through prafit of less on initial recognition if doing so eliminates,
or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the consofidated statement of financial position
at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit-or loss-and other
comprehensive income.

A derivative-embedded in a hybrid contract; with a financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if; the economic characteristics and risks are not clasely
related fo the host; a separate. instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet
the definition -of & derivative; and the hybrid. contract is not measured. at fair value through profit or loss:
Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in. profit or ioss.
Reassessment only occurs if there'is either & change in the terms of the contfract that significantly modifies
the cash flows that would cthenvise be required or a reciassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to be classified in its

‘entirety as.a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is primarily derecognised (i.¢:, removed from the Group's consclidated statement of financial position) when:

. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

» The: Group has'transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an abligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to.a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred contro! of the asset. '

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from-an asset or has entered info a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what-extent, it has.retained the risks and rewards. of ownership.
When it has neither transferred. nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continués to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated Jiability are- measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obiigations that the Group has:
retained. '

Centinuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower

of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be reguired to repay.

i1
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“Azerbaijan. Caspian Shipping” CJSC for the year ended 31 December 2022

{Amounts presented are in thousands of Azerbaifani Manats unless otherwise stated)

2. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies {continued)
Financial assets (continued)
impajrment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for ECL for all debt instrumerits not held at fair value through profit or
loss. ECL is based on the différence between the contractual cash flows due in aceordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate.

ECL is recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a stgntfcant incréase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECL. | is. provided: for credit losses that result fiom default events that are
possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant fncrease in credit. risk since initial recognition; a !oss allowance'is required for credit losses
expectéd over the remaining life-of the exposure, iirespective of the timing of the default {a lifetime ECL).

For financial assets other than. tradeé receivables, the Group applies general approach in calcylating ECL. For
trade receivables, the Group applles a simplified approach in calculating ECL. Therefore, the Group does not

track changes in credit risk, but instead recognlses a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting

date. The Group has established a provision matrix that i5 based on its historical credit loss experience:
adjusted for forward- Iooklng factors specific to the debtars and the economic environment,

Financial liahifities.
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are.classified, at'initjal recognmon as financial liabilities: at fair value through profit-or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabllities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Group's finaneial liabilities include trade and other
payables, short-term and long-term loans,

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on theit classification, as described below:
Fiancial liabilities at fair valué through profit or loss

Financial liabilitiesat fair value through profit or loss mclude financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they areincurred for the-purpose of repurchasing in
the near term, This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are
not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defned by IFRS. 9. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as heid for frading unless they are designated as effective’ hedging instruments.

Gains or losses o liabilities held for trading aré recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income:.

Financial liabilities designated upen initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. are designated at

the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The Group has not designated any
financial liability as.at.fair value through profit-or Igss.

12
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“Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping” CJSC for the year ended 31 December 2022

(Amounts presented are in thousands.of Azerbaljani Manats unless otherwise stated)

2. Basis of preparation and sighificant accounting policies (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Loans, horrowings and payables

This is the category most relevant to'the Group, Afterinitial recognition, interest-bearing loans.and borrowings

-are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit

or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost
is calculated by taking- inte account any disceunt or premium pn acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR.. The EIR amoriisation is included as finance costs in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comp_rehenswe income. This. category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and
borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial [iabiiity is derecogmsed when the obligation under the Iiabmty is discharged or cancelied or expires..
‘Whenan exlstmg financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,

~orf the terms of an existing liability are’ ‘substantially modified, such an exchange ‘or modification is treated as
the-derecognition of the original I|ab1||ty and the recognition of a hew llabtllty The difference ih the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive.

income:

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported ih the consolidated statement
of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on'a net basis, to realisé the assets and setile the liabilities simultanéously.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using: the ‘effective. interest fnethod, less provision for expected credit losses. A receivable represents:
the Group's rlght to an amount of consideration that is-unconditional.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly
liquid mvestments with original maturlties of three months or less.

Restricted cash
Restricted cash is presented separately from cash and cash equivalents, Restricted balances represent

amount available on VAT -deposit account and are excluded from cash and cash equivalents forthe purposes
of the consolidated statement of cash flow.

‘Trade payables

Trade payables are accrued when the counterparty performed: its obligations under the contract. Trade
payables are recognised lnitlally at fair and subsequently measured at amortised cost- usmg the effective
interest rate method.

Loans

All- loans are inifially recognised at fair value of the proceeds received nét of issue costs associated with

the loan. Loans are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method..

interest costs on loans to finance the construction of vessels, property, plant and equipment are capitalised,
during the. beriod of time that is required to complete. and prepare the-asset for its intended use. Alf other
borfowing costs are expensed,

13
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(Amounts presented are in thousands of Azerbaijani Manals uniess otherwise stated)

2. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (continuied)
Vessels, property, plant-and equipment

Construction in progress, piant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses; if any. Such cest includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment
and borrowing costs for long-term construction. projects if the recognition criteria -are met. When significant
parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately
based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in
the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied: All
other repair and maintenance costs are.recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Significant renovation and overhaul expenses over vessels arising at a later date are included in each asset's
ook value. They can be recognised as a separate asset only if it is likely that the future economit benefits
associated with the item will be beneficial to the Group and if the acquisition cost of the &sset can be reliably
determined. Ordinary repair and maintenance expenses are recognised as expenses for the reporting period
during which they were incurred. '

Vessels are depreciated over their estimated Useful lives. The estimated usefut lives and the residual values
of assets-are revised at gach end of the reporting period and, when necessary, adjusted to reflect changes
that have taken place in the expected futiire economic benefits, '

Bepreciation

‘Vessels, property, plant and eguipment related. to shipping industry are depreciated using a straight-line

depreciation method, Land is not depreciated. Assets under construction are not depreciated.

The estimated usefu! lives of the Group's vessels, property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Buildings.and constructions 1510 30 years:
Machinery and equipment 3to 25 years.
Vessels and port facilities 3 to 30 years

The expected useful lives of vessels, property, plant and equipment are reviewed on an annual basis and, if
necessary, changes in useful lives are accounted for praspectively.

The residual value of an asset is the estimatéd amount that the Group would currently obtain from disposal of
the assetless the estimated costs of disposal, if the dsset were already of the-age and in the condition expected
atthe end of its usefu! life. The residual vaiue of an asset is nil if the Group expects to use the assaf until
the end-of its physical life unless scrap value is significant. The assets’ residual values are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Lea_ses

The Group assesses at contract-inception whether a coritract is, or contains, a lease. That is; if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group-as a fessee
The Group-applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leasas, except for short-term leases

and leasas of Iow—-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-
use assets representing the right to-usé the underlying assets,
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Notes to the consolidated financial staternents

“Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping” CJSC for the year ended 31 December 2022

(Amounts presented are in thousands of Azerbaijani Manats unless otherwise stated)

2. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
) Right-of-use assets

The Group recognisesright-of-use assets at the commencement date of the igase (i.e., the date thie underlying
asset is. available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at.cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities, The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at'or
before the commencement date less any lease incentivas received. nght-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease tefm and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Buildings and constructions 31o 15 years
Machinery and equipment _ 3to 15 years
Vessels and port facilities 3to 15 years
Vehicles, furnifure and other 3to.5 years

If ownership. of the leased asset transfers t6 the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

iy Lease labilities

At the commiencement date of the lease, the Group recognises Jlease liabilities measured at the present value

of lease paymernits to be made over the lease term. The jease payments. include fixed payments (including in-

substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an

index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless. thay are
incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the paymant cccurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments; the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate af the lease
commencement date because the' interest rate lmphclt iry th'e' Iea'se is not readllyr determlnabie After’
reduced for the 1ease p_ayments mad_e _In add}tlon_ the carrymg amount of _Iease l|_ab|_l;ties is remea_sured if
there is a maodification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future
payments resultlng from & change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in
the assessment of an option 1o purchase the underlying.asset.

i) Shor-term leases and leases of low-valye assets

The Group-applies the short-term lease recogn'l:tlon exemptl'on to its ‘short-term leases of machmery and

equipment {i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from-the commencement date and

do not contain a purchase option). it also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases
of office equipment that are considered to be low value, Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense: on a straight-liie basis over the lease term,

Group as a lessor

Leasés in which the Group does not transfer substantially ali the risks and rewards of ownarship of an asset
are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying‘amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same. basis
as rental income. Contingent rénts are recogniséd as revenué in thé peried in which they are earned:

'[ntangible_ assets

Intangible assets acquired separateiy are-measured on initial recognition at cost, The cost of intangible assets
acquired in & businiess combination is their: fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible asséts are carried at cost leés any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses
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Notes to the conselidated financial statements.

“Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping” CJSC for the year ended 31 December 2022

(Amounts presented are in thousands of Azerbaijani Manats uniess.otherwise stated)

2. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets (continued)
Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related

expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. Intangible assets
include rights and. computer software, patents, licences, customer refationships, trade name, water rights and

-development projects.

The useful lives of intangible assets are Assessed as eithier finite or indéfinite. Intangible assets with finite lives

are amortised. on a straight-line basis over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever

there is an indication that the’ intangibie asset may be Impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisaticn
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at. least at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in. the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset is accounted for By chariging the amartisation penad or method, as appropriate, and
aretreated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense orvintangible assets with finite lives

is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss ahd other comprehensive incomein the expense
‘category consistent with the function of the intangible assets:

Intangible assets with indefinite useful fives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either
individually or at the cash- -gengrating unit level, The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life contifiues to be supportable. i not, the change in useful fife from indefinite
to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition. of an intangible asset are measured as the difference betwéen
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the consolidated

‘statement of profit of loss and other comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower-of cost and net realizable value. Net realisable vatué is the estimated selling
price.in the ordinary course of busmess less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs to sell.

Cost.is assigned by the weighted average method. Cost. comprises direct purchase costs of materials for
vessals repair and maintenance and ¢ost of productton {based on normal operating capacity).

‘Dividends

The Group recognises a liability to pay a dividend when the distribution is authorised and the distribution i is ho
Ionger at the discretion of the Group. As per the cerporate laws 6f Republic of Azerbaijan, a distribution
is authorised when it is approved by the shareholder. A. corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Distribution to the Government

Dlstributlon fo the Government tepresent-cash distributions: or financing which the Group may be required fo
make to the state budget, various government dgencies and projects-administered by the Government based
on the paricular decisions of the Government. Such distributions are récorded as a reduction of equity.
Distributions in the form of transfers of non-monetary assets are recognised at the carrying value of transferred:

-assets,

Contributions by the Government

Contributions by the Government are made in the form of cash contributions, trafsfer of othér state-6wned
entities or transfer of all or part of the Government's.share in other entities, Transfer of the state“owned entities
to the Group is recognized as contribution through equity staterhent in the amount being the fair value of
the transferred entity (in case of transfer by the Government of its share in other entities — the transferred
share in the fair value of the respective entity),

Value-added tax

The tax authorities permit the settlement of sales and purchases value-added tax {*VAT") oni-a net basis.
16:
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Notes.‘io the consolidated finanicial statements
“Azarbaijan Caspian.Shipping” CJSC: for the year ended 31 December 2022

{Amounts presented are in Iﬁousan‘ds_ of Azerbaijani Manats unless otherwise stated)

2. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies {continued)
Value-added tax (continued)
VAT payabie

VAT payable repreézeénts VAT related to sales net of VAT on purchases which have been settled at the reporting
date. VAT related to sales is payable to tax authorities.recognised upon receipt of payment VAT related to

sales which have not beén settled at the consclidated statement of financial position daté is also included in

VAT payable, Where provision has been made for impairment.of receivables, impairment loss is récorded for:

the gross .amount of the debtor, including VAT where applicable. The related VAT deferred- liability is

maintained until the debtor is written off for tax purposes.
VAT recaverable

VAT _recover_ab_le.rel'at_és {a purchases which have not been settled at the reporiing date. VAT recoverable &
reclaimable against VAT on sales upon payment for the purchases.

Revenue recognition

The Groups revenue is mainly generated. through sales of offshore services {mainly, time-charters) and
transportation of cargo and passengers (mainly, voyage charters). Revenue.is recognised when control of
the services or goods are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those services or goods. The Group has generally concluded
that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically controls the goods or services before
transferring them to: th_e_ customer,

Revenie from voyage-charlers

Revenues from voyage charters -are earned for the carriage of cargo on behalf of the charterer, in the spot
market and on contracts of affreightment, from one or more locations of cargo loading to one or more locations
of eargo discharge in return for payment of an agreed upon freight rate per ton of cargo. Freight contracts
contain conditions regarding the amount of time avaiiable for loading and discharging of the vessel. If these
conditions dre breached the Group is compensated for the additional time incurred in the formi of demurrage
revanue. Demurrage is a variable consideration which is recognised, from the time‘it becoimies probable, aver

the remaining time of the voyage. In applying its revenue recognition method, management belisves that

satisfaction of a performance obligation for a voyage charter begins when the vessel arrives at the loading port
and ends at the time the discharge of cargo is completed at the discharge port {load to discharge, which is
when the contract with the customer expires). The: Group uses the output methed for measuring the progress
towards satisfaction of a perforriance obligation, i.e. voyage revenue is recognised pro-rata based on time
elapsed fromi lodding to the expected date of complétion of the discharge.

Revente from time charters

Revenues from fime charters are earned for use of the services of the-vessel and the crew by the charterer for

‘ah agreeéd period of time. The time-charter contracts continues-to be accounted for as. a service contract.

The performance obligation is satisfied over trme_ giver that the charterers - s:rnt,_lltan_eously receive and

‘copsume the benefits provided by the Group.

Other revenues

Other revenues from non-core operating activities.usually contain one distinct performance obligation, which
is satisfied over time -as the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefit from the Group’s
performanice, using the cutput- method. Whereas, there are also other revenues from contracts related to sales
of goods and services of the Group not diréctly related to core business, which are satisfied at the point of
time.
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_ Notes to the consolidated financial statements
“Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping” CJSC for the year ended 31 December 2022

(Amounts presented. are in thousands of A'zerbafjanf Manats.unfess otherwise. stated)

2. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies {continued)y
Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer.
If the Group performs, By transférring goods or services to a customer, before the customer pays consideration
of before paymeént is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that i is condltional

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amouft of consideration’is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration
before. the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when
the paymentis made or the payment is due {whichever is earller) Contract iabilities arg recagnised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract.

Related parties
Related parties are disclosed ir accordance with IAS 24 Related Farty Disclostires.

Goverrimental economic and social policies affect the Group's finahcial position, results-of operations and cash
flows,

Related parlies may enter intc transactions which unrelated parties might not and transactions betweeh related
parties may net be effected on the same terms, conditions and -amounts as transactions betweeh unrelated
‘parties. It is the nature of transactions with related parties that they cannot be presumed to be carried-out on
ah arms-tength basis.

Corporate income taxes

Corporate income taxes have been provided for in.the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
the apphcable legislation enacted or substantwely enacted by the reporiing date. The income tax charge
‘comprises current tax and deferred tax and is recognised on the profit or loss unless it relates to transactions
that are recognised, in the same or a different period, in other comprehensive i income or directly in equity.

Current fax is'the amount expected to be paidto or recovered from the taxation authorities in respect of taxable
profits or losses for the current-anid prior periods: Taxes, other than income, are recorded within operating
EXpenses,

Deferred tak is provided Using the liability method ontemporary differences between the tax bases of assets
-and-fiabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes-at the reporting date,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

- Wheh the deferred tax liability arises from the-initial recognition of goodwill or-an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a businass combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the d@ccounting profit rigr taxable profit or loss;

> In respect.of taxable temporary differénces associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests. in joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the' temporary differences can be
controlied and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeabile future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for; all deductible temporary differences: the carry forward of unused tax
credits ahd unused tax losses, o the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductibie temporary differences. The carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utitised, except:

» When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductibie temporary difference arises from the- initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the fransaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

- In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, -associates
and Interests in joini arrangemients; deferred tax assets.are recogniséd only to the extent that it is
prabablethat the temporary differences will reverse in the foréseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utliised.
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) N Notes to the consolidated financial statements.
“Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping" CJSC for the year ended 31 Decembeér 2022

{Amounts presented-are in i‘hou_sand_s_of Azerbaifani Manals uniess otherwise stafed)

2. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies {continued)
Corporate income taxes '(continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
itis no longer probabie that sufficient taxabie profit witf be available to atlow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilised. Unrecognised defeired tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are. recognised to
the extent that it has become. probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is reafised, or the liability i§ settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws} that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the: reporting date,

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legaily enforceable right exists ta set off curréent.
tax assets against current income tax liabifities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxatlon authority,

Deferred Income tax asséts are recogrized to the extent that it is probable that fuiure taxable profit will be
‘available against which the temporary diffeiénces can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in. subsidiaries. and
associates, except where the timing of the reversal of the. temporary difference is controlled:by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeablie future:

E'mployee henefits

Wages, salaries, contributions to the Social Protection Fund of the ‘Republic of Azerbaijan, paid annual ledve
-and sick {eave, bonuses, obligations for dlsabmty benefits and non-monetary benefits (e.g. health services and
klndergaz‘ten services) are accrued in. the year in which the associated services arerendered by the employees
‘of the Group.

Expenses

Expenses are presented by function in the consclidated statement of profit or loss anid other comprehensive
income. Categorization of the nature of expenses is based on operational functions of the Group’s entities and
-subsidiaries.

Segment reporting

jOperatlng segmients are feported ina manner conisistent with the-intérnal reporting”provided 1o the. Group's
chief decision-makers. The Group reparts separate information about an operating segment that meets any of
the following quantitative thresholds:

> ts _repdrted:revenue, includinig both sales to exiernal customers and intersegment sales or transfers,is
10% or more of the combined revenue, intérnal and external, of all operating segments.

» The absolute arriount.of its reported profit or loss is 10% -or more of the greater, in absolute amount,
of the combined reported profit of all:-operating segments that did not report a loss and the comblned
reported loss of all operating segments that réported a loss.

» Hs‘assets are 10% ormore of the combined assets of all dperating segments.
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. Notes to the consolidated financial statemerits
tAzerbaijan Caspian Shippihg" CJSC for the year ended 31 Decembér 2022

{Amounis presented are in thousands of Azerbaifani Manals unless otherwise stated)

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

inthe appilcatlon of the Group s accounting policies, which are described in Note 2, managenerit is required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabiltties that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlymg assumptions: are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to. accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that perlod
or in the period of the revision and future periads if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources.of estimation uncertainty
‘at the end of the reéporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment fo the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the nextfinancial year.

Provision for expected credit losses

The Group uses a provision matrix to calcufate ECLs for trade receivables.and contract assets. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various-customer segments that have similar loss patterns
(i.e., by geography, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms
of credlt insurance},

‘The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical ebserved default rates. The Group calibrates
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-iooking information. For instance, if
forecast economic condltaons (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to deterforate over the next year
which can lead to ‘an increased number of defatilts in the sector, the. hlstorlcal default rates are adjusted.
At every reporting date, the histerical observed default rates are updated z@nd changes in the forward- -iooking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default. rates, forecast, economic. canditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs Is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of
forecast econemic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss experience. and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future, The mformatlon about
the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables is disclosed in Note 7.

Recognition of deferred income tax assets

The net deferred tax assets represent income taxes recoverable through future deductions from taxable profits
and is recorded on the consolidated statement of financial position. Deferred income tax assets are recorded
1o the extent that realisation of the related tax benéfit is prcbable in determinmg future taxable profits and
‘the amount of tax benefits whose realisation is probable in the future management makes judgments and
applies estimation based on expectations of future income that are believed to bé reasonable under
the circumstances,

Obligation for disability henefits

The Group records liability in accordance with Azerbajjan Labour Code and has an obligation fo pay
‘compensation for employees. damaged at work. The amount recognized as a provisiofis the best estimate of
the expenditures required to settle the present obligation at the repérting date based on current applicable
legislation and reguiations, and is alsc subject to.changes because of medifications, revisions and changes in
laws. and regulations and respective interpretations thereof: Governmental authorities are continually
conmdenng applicable regulations and their enforcement. Ccnmdermg subjectl\nty of these provisions, there
s unceftainty regarding both the amount and estimated timing of incurring such costs. The key assumptions
used to measuie the amount of the estimated disability benefit obligations and sens;tlwty analysis, are
disclosed in Note 11.
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Notes to the consolidated financial stateiments

““Azerbajjan Caspian Shipping” CJSC for the year ended-31 December 2022

(Amounts presented are in thousands of Azerbaijani Manats uniess. otherwise stated)

3. Critical accounting estimates and'judg_gments {continued)

Allowance for impaired or obsolete inventory

'The Group reviews. and if required reduces the carrying value of inventories for the amount of obsolete,.

impalred and slow-moving ihventories at each reporting date, Such amount is estimated individually- and in
aggregate based on the percentage ‘threshalds.applied to obsolete or slow-maving inventoriés depending on

‘the level of damage and frequency of use.

Gther provisions

‘Provisions. are recognised when the Group has'a present cbligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past

event, it'is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benifits will be required to' settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the. Group expects
some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the: réimbursement is
recognised asa separate asset, but oniy when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to

-a provision is presented in the corisolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehenswe income. net of
‘any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are.discounted using

a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liabiiity. When discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time js recognised as a finance cost

impairment of non-financial assets

Management assesses whether there are any indicators of possible impairment of all non-financial assets at
each reporting date based on-events or circumstances that indicaté the carrying value of assets may not be
recoverable. Such indicators include changes in the: Group s business plans, changes in commodity prices
leading to unproftabie performances, changes in product mixes. Goodwill and other indefinite life intarigibles
are tested for impairment annually and at other times when impairment indicators exist. Other non-financial
assets are tested for impairinent when there aré indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

When value in use calculations are undertaken, management estimates the expected future cash flows from
the asset or cash generating unit and chooses a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows;

The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. The Group
generally estimates value-in-use- using a discounted cash flow model fiom financial budgets approved by
management. If the recovérable.amount is estimated based on fair value less costs to sell, the Group involves
independent valuators.io estimate recoverable amount of its non-financial assets.

As at 31 December 2022 the Group. performed impairment trigger. anaiysas and.did-not identify any impairment
trigget, As at 31 Decernber.2021, the Group performed impairment test and as a resuit of impairment test, no
impairment charge was. recognlsed

Useful lives of vessels, property, plant-and equipment and intangible assets

Management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation and amortization charges for its

‘vessels, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, This estimate is based on projected period over

which the Grotp expects to consume economic benefts from the asset Management will increase

the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than prewously estimated lives; or it will write-off or write-

down technically obsolete assets that have been abandoried or sold. The useful lNes are reviewed at least at
each reporting date. Changes in any of the above conditions or estimates may result in adjustments to future
depreciation rates..
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3. Critical accounting estimates and judgemients (continued)
Leases
Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts with renewal options

The.lessee and lessor need to determine whether a carittact is a lease at inception of the lease. The inception

-date is the earlier of the date of a lease agreement and the date of commitment by the parties to.the principal

terms and conditions.of the lease, The underlying asset is the asset that is subject to a lease, for which the right
to use that asset has been provided by a lessor to a lessee, The commencement date of the lease is the date
on which the lessor makes' an underlying asset available for use by a lessee.

The lease term begins at the commencement date and includes any rent-free periads provided to the lessee
by the lessor. '

The Group determines the lease term as thé nen-cancellable period of the lease, together with both:

. Periods covered by an option to extend the {zase if the lessee is reasonably certain fo exefcise that
option; and '

- Periods covered by an option-to terminate the lease if the lessee is reasonably certain not to exercise.
‘that option.

Purchase options are assessed in the same way as options to extend or terminate the: lease. An option to
purchase an underlying asset is economically similar to an option-fo extend the lease term for the remaining
economic life of the. underlying asset.

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with ahy periods
cavered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be‘exeércised, or ahy pericds covered by
an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The Group considers ali relevant

facts and circumstances: that créate an economic incentive for the lessee to exercise, or not 1o exercise,

the option, including any expected changes in facts and circumstances from.the commencement date until
the exercise date of the option.

Incremental borrowing rate (IBR)

The Group canniot readily determine the interest rate implicit in lease, therefore it uses incrementa! borrowing
rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have fo pay to
borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic ehvironment. The I1BR therefore reflects what the Group ‘wauld
have to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that

'do not enter into financing transactions). or when they need to. be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions

of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates
the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and makes certain entity-
specific estimates.

4, Adoption of new or revised standards and intérpretations and new accounting pfbnbuncé’me_nts

The Group applied for the first-time: certain amendments to the standards, which-are effective for ‘annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 (unless otherwise stated). The Group has rot early adopted any
standards, interpretations or amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective. The'nature and
the'impact of each amendment is described below:

Property, Plant and Equipment; Proceeds before Intended Use — Amendments to IAS 16

The amendment prohibits entities from deducting from the. cost of an tem of property, plant and equipment,
any proceeds of the sale of items produced while bringing that asset to the location.ang cendition hecessary
for it-to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management, Instead, an entity recognises
the proceeds from selling such items, and the costs:of producing those items, in profit or loss.
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Notes to the consalidated financial statements
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(Amounts prasented are in thousands of Azerbajjani Manats unfess otherwise stated)

4. Adoption of niew or revised standards and interpretations and new accounting pronouncements
{continued)

Property, Plant and Equr}omenrs_ Proceeds before Interided lUse — Amendments to IAS 16 (Continued)

Ih accordance with the transutlonal provisions, the Group applles the amendments. retrospectlvely only tojtems

.of PP&E made available for Use on or after the beginning.of the earliest period présented when the entlty first

applies the amendment {the date of initia! application).

These amendments-had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group as there were o
sales of such iterns produced by property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the beginning
of the earliest period presented.

Refsrence fo the Conceptual Framework — Amendments to IFRS 3

The amendments replace a reference to a previous version of the IASB's Conceptual -Framework with

a reference to the current version issued in March 2018 without significantly changing its requirements.

‘The @amendments add an exception to the recognition principle of IFRS:3 Business Combinations to avoid

the issue of potentiai ‘day 2' gains or losses arising for Jiabilities-and contmgent liabilities that would be within
the scope-of IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or IFRIC 21 Levies, if incurred
separately. The exception requires entities to apply the criteriain IAS 37 or IFRIC 21, respectively, instead of
the Conceptual Framework, to determine whether a present obligation exists at the acqu151tlon date.

‘The amendments also add & new paragraph to IFRS 3 to clarify that contingent assets- do nat qualify for

recognition at the acquisition date,

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group applies the amendments prospectively, i.e., to
business combinations. occurring afterthe beginning ‘of the annual reporting period in which it first applies
the amendments (the date of initial application),

These amendments had ne impact oi the consolidated financial statements of the Group as there were no
contingent assets, liabilities 'or contingent liabilities within the scope of these amendments that arose during
the period.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Fees in the "10%’ test for derscognition of finaricial liabilities

The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or

modified financial liabiiity are substantially different from the terms of the original financial liability. These fées
include only those paid oF received betweeh the bofrower and the lender, including fees: paid or received by
either the borfower or lender on the. others behalf. There is no similar amendment proposed for
|AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Meéasurement.

In-accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are
modified.or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applles

the amendment (the date of initial appllcatron) These amendments had no impact on the consalidated financial

statements of the Group as theéré were no modifications of the Group s financial instruments during the period.
Onerous. Conlracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract — Amendments to IAS 37

An onerous. contract is 3 contract under which the unavoidable of meeting the obligations under the centract
costs (i.e., the costs that the Group cannot- avoid because it has the:contract) exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received under it,

The amendments specify that when assessing whether a cohtract is onerous or loss-making, an eritity needs
o include costs that relate diréctly to & contract to provide goods o sefvicas inciuding both incremental costs
{e.g;, the costs of direct labour and materials) and @n allocation of costs. directly related to contract activities
(e.g., depreciation of equipment used to fulfil the contract.and costs of contract management and supervision).
General and administrative costs do not relate directly te a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly
chargeable tothe counterparty under the contract '
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4.  Adoption of new or revised standards and interpretations and new accounting pronouncements
{continued)

Onerous Cantracts— Costs of Fuifilling a Contract— Amendments to IAS 37 (continued)

These amendments hiad no itnpact on the consolidated firancial statements of the Group a5 there weré no

onerous contracts of the Group during the pericd.

Standards issued, but not yet effective

The standards and .interpretations that are issued, but net yet éffective, up 16 the date of issuance of

the Group’s consolidated financial statements are disclosed below, The Group intends to adopt these

standards, if applicable, when-thay become effective. :

Amendments to IAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

In January 2020, the IASB: issued amendments to paragraphs.69 to 76 of IAS 1 to specify the requirements

for classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments clarify:

. What is meant by aright to defer setilement;
- That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period,
- That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right,

. “That only if an embedded derivativein.a convertible liability is itseif an equity instrument would the terms
of a ifabllity not impact its-classification.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after1 January 2023 and must be

applied retrospect:\fely The Group is currently assessing the impact the amendments will have on current

practice and whether existing loan agreements may fequire renegotlatlon
Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendméntsto 1AS 8

In February 2021, the |ASB issued amendments to I1AS 8, in which it introduces a definition of *accounting
estimates', The amendments clarify the distinction’ between changes in accounting estimates and changes in

-accounting policies and the-correction of errors, Also, they clarify how entities use measurement technigues

and inputs to develop-accounting estlmates

The amendments are effective for annual réporting periods beginning on or after 1-January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that
period. Earlier application is permitted as long as this fact is disclosed. The amendments are not expectéd to
have & material impact on the Group.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendmeits fo IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

In February 2021, the IASB issued amendments to [AS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Maleridfity
Judgements, in which it provides guidance -and examples o help: entities apply materiality judgements to
accounting pollcy disclosures. The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that
are more useful by replacing the requirement for- entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with
a requwement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting polmes and adding guidance on how entities apply
the Goncept of matériality in' making’ demsmns about accolinting: policy disclosures.

The amendments to [AS 1 are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 with earlier
application permitted. Since the amendments to the Practice Statemant 2 provide non-mandatory guidanca on
the application of the definition of material to accounting policy information, -an effective date for these
amendments is not:necessary, The Group is currently assessing the impatt of the amendments on these
consolidated financial statements.
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4, Adoption of new or revised standards and interpretations and new accounting pronouncements
{continued)

Standards issued, buf not yet effective (continued)
Deferred Tax refated to Assets and Liabilities -an‘s?ng from.a ang.-‘e Transaction - Amendmenis'to IAS 12

i May 2021, the Board issued amendments to 1AS 12, which narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception under 1AS 12, so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxablé and deductible
temporary differences, The amendments should be applied to transactions that eccur on or after the beginning
of the earliest comparative period presented. In.addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented, a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability
should also be recognised for all deductible and taxable tempnrary differences associated with leases and
decommissioning cbligations. The Group s currently- assessing the impact of the amendments.

5. Segment information

Operating segment is.component that engage in business activities that may eam revenue or incur expenses,
whose operatmg results -are regularly reviewed by management of the Group and for which discrete. financial
information is available.

The Group treats its business within a single segment and management evaluatés performance of its business
based on profit after tax reported in the IFRS consolidated financial statements, The Group-has 2 customers
that each orie mdlwdually comiprises-more than 10% of the total revenue generated during the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: 1 customer).

Geograpfiical information

Azerhaljan Caspian: Shlpplng CJsSC plays a connecting role in'the Transport Corridor Europe-Caucasus-Asia
(TRACECA) provides marine transportation.of goods and passengers, as well as offshore support services
for cil and gas operations: Another factor that can influence the Company's operations is “Baku-Thilisi-Qars
New Railroad" Project which- 1§ a new corridor that connects Azerbaijjan, Georgian and Turkish tailways. This
project effectlvaly opens a new rail-only corridor from the Caspian Sea to Europe via Turkey. The management
believes that increasing frade between Turkey and. Central Asia provides it with a significant epportunity to
capture.frade flows, -particularly raw materials. imporied into Turkey from Central Asia and finished goods
exported by Turkey. Management treats services rendered in the Caspian Sea and Black Sea regions as a
whaole shuttle that is directly depend on. each.other. Therefore, management prefer to analyze financial
information as whole regardless any reglonai division,
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6. Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash.comprised the.following as at:

31 December 31 Decembeér

2022 - 2021
AZN denominated bank balances 4,371 2:720
USD dencminated bank balances 29,043 3422
Other currencies 939 170
‘Total ¢cash and cash equivalénts 24,353 6,312
VAT deposit account; AZN 406 98
Total cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash 34,759 6,410

Effective 1 January 2008 the state tax authorities introduced VAT deposit accounts and enforced payments of
input and output VAT via these accounts. In order to comply with new tax regulation, the Group opened a VAT
deposit account. |n-accordance with this regulation, the balance on VAT deposit account may only be
withdrawn with a 45 days niotice to the tax authorities,

7.  Trade and other receivables
Trade and otherreceivables comprised the following as at:

31 December 31 Deceniber

2022 2021
Trade receivables 247,973 250,298
Less: ECL {15,515) {7,266)
Total trade receivablas ' 232,458 243,032
Other receivables 139 139

Total trade and other receivables : 232,597 243471

Trade receivables are mainly represented by amounts due from customers for shipping, transportation of-
cargoes and other services provided by the Group.

Trade and other receivables in amount of AZN 86,140 (31 Decembeér 2021: AZN'61,351) are denominated in
foreign cufrencies, mainly in USD and EUR.

Set out below is the movement in the allowance for ECL of trade. receivables:.

2022 2021
At 1 January (7,266) (14,478)
(ECL)/ECL reversal (8,249 7,212
At 31 December (15,515) (7,266)
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8. Taxes receivable’

Taxes receivable is recoverable by means of an offsel against future tax liabilties or as a direct cash refund
from the tax authorifies,

Taxes receivable comprised the followings as at:

31 December 31 December

2022 2021
Receivable fram state budgst 1,485 2,815
VAT recoverable 8,722 12,055
Total taxes receivable _ 10,187 14,670

Receivable from state budget is related to prepayments made for taxes throughout the year. VAT regoverable
fsrelated to payables for purchases cutstanding at reporting period and to be-claimed upon settlement of
respective payable and prepayment an construction works to be claimed after delivery of associated services.
9.  Prepayments

Prepayments comprised the f_oll'bwing_ as at:

31 December 31 December

2022 2021
Short-term prepayments for trade and services 6,558 9,600
Long-term prepayments for construction of vessels 36,919 4,001
Total prepayments 43,477 13,601

‘Prepayments-as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are primarily represented by prepayments madé to suppliers

for construction of vessels, raw materials, spare parts and etuipment and repair and maintenance services for
vessels.

10. Inventories

Inventories comprised the followings'as at:

31 December 31 Pecember

2022 2021
Raw matefials and spare parts 18,711 31,301
Fuel 8,955 7,220
Diher 10,747 7.393
Total inventories -36,413 45,914
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11.  Trade and other payables and othet non-cuirent liabilities

Trade and other payables as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 represent amounts mainly due to suppliers for
raw materials; spare parts and equipment and repair and maintenance services for vessels,

31 December 31 December

2022 2021
Trade payables 20,311 49.977
Total financial payables 20,311 49,977
Payable to employees 17,589 19,439
Total trade and other payables 37,900 69,416

Financial payables in amount of AZN 4,769 (31 December 2021: AZN 49,157) aré denominated iri- foreign
currencies, mainly in USDand EUR. '

As al-31 December 2022, current portion of liabilities for disability benefit payments in the amount of AZN 1,023

(31 December 2021: AZN 1,018) was included in payables to employees. Non-current portion of liabilities for
disability benefit payments in the @mount of AZN 4,806 (31 Decembér 2021: AZN 5,576) was included in other
non-current fability.

Liabitities for-disability benefit payments:

2022 2021

Carrying amount at 1 January 6,594 7,305
Utilisation (2,490) (2,152}
Unwinding of present value discount. 423 395
Addiions 2,924 566
Effect of change in estimates (1,622) 480
Carrying amount at 31 December 5,829 8,594
-Of which: o

Current 1,023 1,018
‘Nan-current 4,808 5,576

The Group has an obligation to compensate its employees for the damage caused to their health- during their
empicyment, as well as to compensate the -families of the employees died at work. The Group calculated
the présent value of the injury payments to employees using a discount rate of 10.1% and 8.42% as at
31 December 2022 and 2021, respectively. For the purpese of calculation of the lifetime payments to injured

employees, the Group estimated. a life expectancy as 71 and 77 for men and wainen, respectively, If

the estimated discount rate used in the calculation had been 1%. higher/lower than management's estimate,
the carrying amount of the obiigation for employee disability would have béen AZN 1,040 lower / AZN 204
higher, respectively. '
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12. Loans

At 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, short-terriloans of the Group weré represented by the foliowing
facilities:

Balance as at Balance as at

interest 31 December 31 December
Facilities rate Maturity date 2022 2021
Short-term bofrowings in AZN 365%  December 2023 264 318
Current porticn of long-tem '
borrowings: 4,235 4,235
Total shart-terin loans and current
portion of long-term loans 4,499 4,553

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021 lohg-term loans of the Group Were répresented by the following facilities:

Balance as at Balance as at
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
o Interest Maturity ~ Non-current Current Non-current Current.
Facilities rate date portion portion portion portion
AZN 42 million 3.65%  August2024 4,235 4235 8,469 4,235
Total long-term loans 4,235 4,235 8,469 4,235
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Nates fo the consclidated financial statements
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14. Right-of-use asset and lease fiability
Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for 2 tankers operating in the Black Sea region leased under bareboat-charter
agreerments. The Group management has fong-term intentions for leasing these vessels, In.2021 the Group’
reassessed lease term of 2 tankers and five years was best estimate of management as of 31 December 2021
considering feng-terms strategy of the Graup in respect of extension of operations i the Black. Sea region.
Accordingly, the effect of extension was reflected in the effect of modification’in-payment schedule. Four years
was the best estimate of management in respect of leased vessels as of 31 December 2022, The Group’s
obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor's title to the ieased assets. IBR used for calculation of
léase liability as of 31 December 2022 was 2.54% (31 December 2021: 2.54%),

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use. assets recognised and the movements during
the period:. '

Vessels and
port facilities

Right-of-use assets

Attt January 2021 2,286
The effect of modification in payment schedule 11,441
Depreciation expense. (2,286)
At1 January 2022 11,441
Depreciation expense. (2.288)
At 31 December 2022 9,153

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the period:

2022 2021
‘Lease liabilities
At January 23,024 13,204
The effect of modification in payment schedule - 11,441
Accretion of interest 351 828
Payment (12.984) (2.249)
At 31 Decemnber _ 10,391 23,024
Of which:
Current 2,594 13,824
Non-current 7.797 9,200

15. ‘Share capital and additfonal paid-in capital

Share capital

As at-31 December 2022 and 2021 the Company had authoyized and issued 440,050,998 shares at par
1-Azerbaijani Manat to the Government of the Republic of Azerbaijan, which is the sole and ultimate
shareholder of the Group.

Additional paid-in capital

In 2022 the Group's additional paid-in capital increased By AZN 30,000 (2021: AZN 9,100) which was
contiibuted as cash. This amount represents the contribution from the Government which is not registered in

charter capital,
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16,  Analysis of revenue by categories

2022 2021
Ravenue ' 508,341 391,350
Rent incomea. 61,730 67,783
Total _ 570,071 459,133

Rent income is ¢comprised of income generated from bareboat arid partialy time-charter contracts, Revenug:
includes-freight and passenger transportation, offshare support services and logistics. services: For the year

ended 31 December 2022 -and 2021 revenue- comprlsed the followings:

2022 2021
Offshare support services 249,120 201,700
Freight and passenger transportation- 250,336 179,966
Logistics services 1,147 3,705
Other revenue 7,738 5,979
Total 508,341 391,350

17.  Analysis of expenses by nature

For the year ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 costof sales, social, generaland administrative

expenses and other operating expenses comprised the followings:

2022 2021

Wages, salaries and social security costs 175,703 146,773
Depreciation of vesséls, property, plant and equipment, leased

assets {Note 13 and:Note 14} 98,174 81,095
‘Raw materials and consumables used 82,806 72,127
Port charges 33,208 30,803
Repairs and mdintenance expenses 33,012 21,973
Taxes other than on income 6,530 12,458
Food expenses _ 16,374 11,428
Daily travelling expenises of the erew of marine transports 10,484 8,697
Insurance expenses 6,147 6,697
Change in allowance forinventories (1,282) 6,171
Utilities expenses 4.901 4784
Logistics expenses 1,276 3,427
Vessels registration-costs 3,818 2,851
Agency and brokerage costs 4740 2412
Provision of social housing 3,754 934
Amortisation of intangible assets 887 518
Reimbursable expenses 6,927 660
Rent expenses 257 422
Business trip expenses 317 247
ECL AECL reversal} 8,248 (7,212)
Other 14,316 4,217
Total cost of sales, social, general, administrative and B

other operating expenses _ 508,599 411,783
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18. Balances and transactions with related parties

Key management compensation

Key management of the Group includes the Chairman of the- Group and its six Deputies. All of the Group's key
management are appointed by the President of the. Azerbaijan Republic. Key management individuals are
entitled to salaries and benefits of the Group in dccordance with the approved payroll matrix. Dunng 2022
compensation of key management personnel totalled to AZN 685 (2021 AZN 634).

The nature of the related party relationships for those related parties with whom the Group entered into
mgmfcant tranisactions. or had significant balances outstanding are detailed below.

At 31 December 2022 and 2021 the outstanding balances with related parties-were as follows;

Government and. Government and
entities. under entities under

government government
control control
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Trade and other receivables 203,539 221,524
ECL: {10;038) (4,844)
Short-term prepayments 462 936
Long-term prepayment 31,895 1,826
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash 32,264 -4 606
Long-termy loan (4,235) {8,468)
Short-term loan and current portion of long-term loan (4.499) {4,553}
Trade and other payables (13,103) (26,896}

Thetransactions with related. parties for the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 weré as follows:

Government and Government and
entities under  entities under

government government
control control
2022 2021

Freight and passenger transportation services 82,694 44777
Difshore support services 226,754 180,292
Other operating incéme 5976 5,351
Repairs and maintenance. expenses {1,706) (459)
Utilities expenses {3,221) (2,108}
Port charges (12,430) (4,458)
Finance cost (448) {(712)
Other expenses (13,711} (5,250)

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
Main sales to and plirchases from the related pdrties are made at market prices. Outstandirig balandes at the

year<end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash: There have beéen no guaranteés. provided for any
related party receivables or payables.
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19. Taxes payable
Taxes payable comprises the foilowing at:

31 December 31 December

2022 2024
Corporate income tax payable 11,102 7,148
‘Total corporate income tax payable 11,102 7,140
VAT payable 49 3,104
Accrued VAT 31,756 34,014
Sacial security contributions 4 454 3,607
Tax penalties and charges 298 6,233
Other 1,451 2.275
Total other taxes payable 38,008 49,233
Total taxes payable 49110 56,373

Accordmg to-the Tax Cdde of the Répubiic of Azerbaijan, effective’ 1 January 2021, sale of goods, works and

services is recognized. upoh receipt of payments from customers, forthe purpose of VAT recognition: Accrued

VAT relates to recejvables for sold goods, works, services outstanding at reporting pericd.

‘20,  Income taxes

Income tax-expense comprises the following:

2022 2021
Current incomie tax expense 19,357 13,549
Deferred tax charge 7.275 1,214
Income tax expense for the year endeéd 31 December 26,632 14,763

The reconclliation between the expected and the actual taxation charge is provided below:

2022 2021
Profit before tax {92,073} (66,555)
Theoratical tax charge at statutory rate of 20% 18,415 13,311
Tax effect 6f non-deductible expenses 8,038 6,088
Recognition of previously unrecognized deferred tax asset - {9,645)
Unrecognised temporary differences 825 882
Loss: which is: exempt from taxation 751 2,451
Other (1,397} 1,676
Income tax expense reported in profit or loss’ 26,632 14,763

Non-deductible expénses are mainly comprised of the social and employeg-reldted expenses as well as 60%
of depreciation expenises of asséts financed by government, in accordance with. Tax Code of the Republic of
Azerbaijan,.
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20. Income taxes (continued)

Differences between IFRS and applicable domestic tax regulations give rise to temporary differences between
the carrying amount of-assets and liabilities for financial réporting purposes and their tax bases. The. tax-effect
of the-movements in these temporary-differences is detailsd bélow:

Origination.
and reverse of
temporary
differences in
the consolidated
statement of
profit or Joss

and other
:31 December  comprehensive 31 December
2021 income 2022
Tax effect of deductible/{taxable) temporary
differences.

Right-of-use asset 2,288 {457} 1,831
Vessels, properly, plant and equipment 34,147 7.153 41,300
Inventories: {1,244 249 {995)
Tradé and other recelvables {2,225) (360) (3,185)
Current lease liabilities (2,765) 2 246 (519
Trade and. other payables (1,726} {1,1.1) (2.737)
Short-tetm and long-term prepayments {13} - {13}
Long-term loan _ 226 (228) -
‘Non-current lease liabilities {(1,840) 281 {1,559)
Deferred tax liabilities 26,848 7,275 34,123

Origination

and reverse of
temporary

_differences in
the consolidated
statement of
profit or loss

‘and other
31 December  comprehensive 31 December
2020 income 2021

Tax effect of deductible/({taxable) temporary
_differences
Right-of-use asset 457 1,831 2,288
Vessels, property, plant and. equipment 34,795 (6438) 34,147
Inventories (1,184} (50 {1,244}
Trade and other receivables (3,548) 1,323 (2,225)
Cutrent lease liabilities (2,641) (124) (2,765)
Trade and other payabies (2,149) 423 (1,728)
Short-term and long-term prepayments (86) 73 (13)
Long-term: loan _ 226 226
Non-cusrent lease: liabilities - {1,840) {1,840)
Deferred tax liabilities _ 25,634 1,214 26,848
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‘21, Other operating income

Other operating income comprised of the fellowing:

2022 2021
‘Sales of other gocéds and servicés rendered. 12:363 2,939
income from alliance agreement 10,480 10,285
"Other 9,984 8,533
Total other operating income from contracts 32,827 21,757

Iicome from ‘alliance agreement comprises income from provision of offshoré ‘support services to oil
companies: operating in the Republic of Azerbaijan and the Caspian Sea region.

22. Risk management

Financial risk factors

The Group's management that has the appropriate skills, experience and supervision oversees
the mahagement of risks and monitofs the Greup’s overall position an-a regular basis. This process of risk
management is critical to the Group and key individuals within the Group are accolintable for the risk éxposures
relating to their responsibilities.

The Group’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade payables, short-term and long-ferm foans. Cashand
cash equivalents, restricted cash and trade and other receivables represent the Group's. principat fi fnanmal

assets. Both principal financial liabilities and financial-assets arise directly from the. Group’s operations.

In the ordinary course of business, the Group is exposed to credit, liquidity arid market risks. Market risk arises
from fluctuating prices on commodities purchased and sold, prices of other raw materials, currency extchange
rates-and interest rates. Depending on degree of price volatillty, such fluctuations in market prices may create
volatility inthe Group’s financial position. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the
uripredictability of finaneial markets and seeks to mihimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s finangial
performance. T effectively manage the variety of exposures that may impact financial résults, the Group's
overriding- strategy is to maintain a strong financial position. Based on structured formal management
procedures, management of the Group- identifies and evaluates financial risks with reference to the current
market position,

Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to'market risks. Market risks arise from &pen positions in (i) foreign currencies,
{iiy interest bearing assets and liabilitie's, all 6f which-are exposed-to géneral and spedific market. movermnents.
Managemant sets limits on the value of risk that may be’ accepted, which is monitored on a regular basis:
However, the use of this approach doss not prevent losses outside of these limifs in the event of more
significant market movements

(i} Foreignéxchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various éxposurés In the noimal course of
business, primarily with respect to USD. Foreign exchange risk arises primarily from future. commercial
transactions, recognised assets-and liabilities when assets-and liabilities are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency,

The majority of the Group’s payables-and receivables from foreign vendors and customers are denoiminated
in USD: There has béen no significant devaluation of AZN against USD and other major currencies durlng

the year ended 31 Decéimber 2022 and 2021.

Management does-nat hedge the Group's foreign exchange risk.
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22, Riskm__a_nagemeht_(cbntinued_}
Market risk (continued)
The:following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasoniably possible change in the uSh, EUR exchange

rates, with -all other variables held constant, of the Group’s post-tax profit. There is no. material impact on
the Group's equity;

Effect on _ Effect on
~ Change. 2022 post-tax Change 2021 post-tax
in rates (+/2) profit in-rates {_+r‘-} profit
USD/AZN -20.00%/-3.00% 22,107/(3,316)  20.00%/-3.00%. 3,091/(464)
EUR/AZN 21.00%/-8.00% 85/(36)  21.00%/-9.00% (203)87

() Interest rate risk

The Group is subject to interest rate risk on financial liabilities and assets with variable interest rates,
To mitigate this risk, the Group's managerment performs periodic analysis of the current interest rate
environment and .depend : si _ _ C
beneficial ta obtain finaricing on 2 fixed-rate or variable-rate basis. In case where the change in the current
market fixed or variable interest rates: is considered ‘'significant management may consider refinancing
a parﬁcular-deb_t'on'more--famur'ab{e- interest rate terms. '

WS (variable rate debt), Management does not have a: formal policy of _'determim{]g: how mu_ch‘ of
the Group's. exposure should be to fixed or vari'able rates. Howaver, at the time of raising new debts

Changes'in interest rates impact primarily debt by changing either their fair vajue {fixed rate debt} or their future:
cash flo ' ] [ i

Credit risk-and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk refers to. the risk exposure that a potential financial loss to the Group may oceur if counterparty
defaults on‘its contractual ohligations.

The Group's financial instruments that are exposed to condentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash
and cash equivalents and trade receivables,

The Graup places its cash with reputable financial institutions in the' Azerbaijan Republic. The Group's cash is.
mainly placed with the International Bank of Azerbaljan (*IBA") which s controfled by the Azerbaijani
Government, The balance of cash and cash equivalents. heid with the IBA at 31 December 2022 was
AZN 31,992 (31 December 2021: AZN 4,508). The Group continually monitors the status of the banks where
its accounts-are maintained.

The Group's maximum EXposure to credit risk is represented by carfying amounts of financial assets on
the consolidated statement of financial position and is presented by class of assets as shown in the table
below:

31 December 31 December

2022 2021
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6) 34,353 6,312
Trade and other receivables, net (Note 7) 232,597 243,171
Total maximum exposure to ¢redit risk 266,950 249,483
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22. Risk management (continued)

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Group's established policy, procedures
and contrel relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is. assessed:based on
an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined.in accordance with this assessment.

AR impairment arialysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure expected
credit losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various custormner segments
with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage
by letters of credit or other farms of credit insurance). The-calculation reflects the probability-wéighted outcoma,
the time value of money and reasonable and supportable infarmation that is available at the reporting date
about past-events, current conditions-and forecasts of future economic conditions. The' maximurm exposure to.
credit risk at the reporting date is the'carrying valug of each class of financial assets disclosed inabove table.

The expected loss allowance as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 was determined as follows for trade
receivables from customers:

Less than More than
30 days  30-60days 61-90days 91-360days 360 days
31 December 2022 past due past due past due past due past due Total
Gross carrying amount )
of trade receivables 72,176 19,095 19,058 131,612 6,032 247,973
Less: ECL ) {4.234) (887) (1,096) {7,189} {2,109 {15,515
Net-trade receivables 67,842 18,208 17,962 124,423 3,923 232,458
Less than More than
30 days 30-60 days 61-80 days 91-360 days 360 days
31 December 2021 pastdue  pastdue past due past due past due Total
Gross ca frying amount - _ _ _
of trade receivables 79,003 18,769 18,732 127,915 5,879 250,298
Less. provision for ECL {2,068) {967) (922) {2,329) {980) {7,266)
Net trade receivables 76,935 17,802 17,810 125,536 4,899 243,032

The Group structures thelevels of credit risk it accepts by placing limits on itsexposuretoa si:n_'gi_'e_ counterparty,
or groups of counterparties. Such risks are subject to an annual or more frequent review. Limits on the level
of credit risk by category are approved annually by management.

In-assessing the credit quality of financial assets-the Group considers the nature of countérparty, historical
information about colnterparty, default rates and any other available information which can be used to assess
credit-quality:

Trade receivables consist mainly of receivables, from offshore. and transportation services rendered to top
customers opérating on the local market.in oil.and gas industry. The Group’s credit risk arising from its trade
receivables is further mitigated by continuous monitering of the creditworthiness of custoimers.

Liguidity risk

Liguidity fisk is the risk that the: Group will not be able 16 meet its financial obligations -as they fall due,
The Group's. approsch:to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due. under both normal and stressed condifions, without incurring unacceptable losses or
fisking damage to the Group’s reputation. In managing liquidity risk, the Group maintains adequate cash
reserves and debt facilities, continucusly monitors forecast and actual cash flows.
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22. Risk management (continued)
Liguidity risk (continued}
Prudent liquidity risk management includes malntamlng sufficient waorking capltal and the ability to close out

market positions. Management monitors rolling forecasts of. the Group's liquidity reserve on the basis of
expected cash flows..

All of the- Group's financial liabilities represent non-derivative financial instruments, The table below analyses
the Greup's financial liabjlities into relevant matwity groupings based on the remaining period from
the consolidated sfatement of finangial position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed

‘in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months approximate their

carrying values,.as.the impact of dascuuntmg i$ nat significant.

The maturity analysis of financial liabilities as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 was as foliows:

Less than. More than
At 31 December 2022 Notes 3 months. 3-12 months  1-5 years 5 years Total
Trade payables 11 20,311 - - - 20,311
Leans 2,276 2,233 4,351 - 8,860
Total undiscounted _ o _
financial liabilities 22,587 2,233 4,351 - 29,171
_ N Less than More than
At 31 December 2021 Notes 3 months. 3-12months  1-5 years Syears Total
Trade payables 11 49,977 - - - 49,977
Loans _ 2,175 2,311 8,856 - 13,342
Total undiscounted _
financial liabilities _ 52,152 2,311 8,856 - 63,319

Fair value of finaricial instruments

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount that would be receivad to seli an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants: at the measurement
date. The estimated fair values of financial instruments have heen determined by the Group using-available
market information, where it. exists;, and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, Judgment is
necessarily reqwred to interpret market data to determinie the estimated fair vaiue, Management has used all
available market ihformation in estimating the fair value of financial instruments.

Set out below is.a comparisen by class of the carrying amounts -and fair value of the Group's financial
mstruments that are carried In the consolidated financial statements.

31 December 2022

Carrying Fair

amounts values.
Cash and cash equivaients (Note 6). 345’5__3 34,353
Total financial receivables {Note 7) 232 458 232,458
Total financial assets 266,811 266,811
Total financial payables (Note 11) 20,311 20,311
Short-tefms loans and current portion of long-term loan (Note 12) 4,493 4,499
Long-term loan {Note 12) 4,235 4,029
Total financial llablllti_es 29,045 28,839
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22.  Risk management (continued)
Fair value of financial instruments {continued)

31 December 2021

Carrying Fair

amounts values
Cash and cash equivatents (Note &) 6,312 . 6,312
Total financial recéivables (Note 7) 243,032 243,032
Total financial assets. 249,344 240 344
Total financial payables (Note 11) _ 48977 49.977
Short-term loans and current partion of long-term loan (Note 12) 4,553 4,553
Long-term loan (Note 12) 8,469 7,531
“Total financial liabilities 62,999 62,061

The following metheds and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

(i) .Sh'ort«ter’m financial assets and liabilities approximate their carfying amounts largaly due to
‘the short-term maturities of these instruments;”

(i  Long-term fixed-rate dnd variable-rate receivablesfioans are evaluated by the’ Group using Level 3
inputs based on parameters -such as interest rates, specific country risk factors, individual
creditworthiness of customers and the risk characteristics of the financed project.

Capital management

The primary cbjective of the Group's capital management policy is to ensure astrong capital base to furid and

sustain its business operations through prudent investment decisions and to-maintain shareholders and

creditor.confidence to support.its business activities.

The Group is-100%. owned by the Govémment and periodically receives funds in the form of the Government
investments for purchase of new vessels,

The Group considers total. capital under management to be as.follows:

31 December 31 December

Notes 2022 2021
Long-term loan 12 4,235 8,469
Short=terri loans and current portion of long-term loan 12 4,499 4,553
Trade and other payables and accrued liabilities 11 '37,900 89,416
Less: cash and cash equivalents 6 (34,353) (6,312
Net deht 12,281 76,126
Equity 1,173,690 1,088,249
‘Capital and net debt 1,185,971 1,164,375
Gearing ratio 1% 7%
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23.  Changesin liabilities arising from financing activities’

Foreign. _
1 January Cash Finance:  exchange _ 31 December
2022 flows cost movement Other 2022

Short-term loans

and current portion
of long-term loans’ 4,683 (4,320} 31 = 4,235 4,499
Long-term Joans- 8,469 (418} 417 - '(4,235) 4,235
Lease lianilities 23,024 (12,984) 351 = - 10,391
Total liabilities

from financing

activities 36,046 (17,720 799 - ~ 19,125

Foreign
1 dantary Cash: Finance exchange 31 December
2021 flows cost movement Other 2021

Shart-term loans

and current poition _
of long-term loans. 19,325 (18,636) 152 (523) 4,235 4,553
Long-term loans 12,727 (583) 560 - {4,235) 8,469
Lease fiabilities 13,204 {2,248) 627 - 11,441 23,024
“Total liabilities

from financing _ _

activities 45,256 (21,467) 1,339 {523) 11,441 36,046

The “Other” column of short-term: and long-term loans is represented by classification of.current portion of

AZN 4,235 (2021; AZN 4.235) of Iong term loans as short-term.

24. Contingencies, commitments arid operating risks
Operating environment

The Group's operations are mainly conducted in the Caspfan Sea region. Besides this, 48% of dry cargo
transportation and 25% of liquid carge transportation during 2022 comprised of operations in the Black Sea
fegion.

As @n emerging market, at the present time the Republic of Azerbaljan does not possess a ‘well-developed
business and regulatory infrastructure that would generally existin a more mature market econamy.

Azerbaijan continues economic referms and development of its legal, tax and regulatory frameworks.
The future stability of the Azerbaijan economy is largely dependent upon these reforms and the effectiveness
of économic, financial and monetary measures undertaken by the government as well as crude oil prices and
-stability of Azerbaijani Manat.

The Azerbaijan economy has been negatively impacted. by decline of oil prices and devaluation of
Azerbaijani Manat during 2015. This resulted in reduced access to capital, a higher cost of capital, inflation
and uncertainty regarding economic grc:wlh

In response to these chalienges, Azerbaijani government announced plans to accelerate Teforms and
support financial system. On 6 December 2016 President of thé Republic of AZerbaijan approved
Strategic Road Maps for the National Economy and Main Economic Sectors-of Azerbaijjan. The rcad maps
cover 2016-2020 development sirategy, long-term outlook up to 2025 and vision beyond.
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24, Contingencies, commitments and operating risks (continued)
Operating environment {continued)

The disruption of the global supply chains, conflict between the. Russian Federation and Ukraine as well as
rising consumer demand for goods led to significant mﬂatlonary pressures to the global economy in 2022,

including soaring commodity prices. During 2022, oil and gas prices reached multi-year highs, contributing to
significant trade surplus, and increased foreign currency inflows into the Azetbajjani economy. The prices
declined tawards the end of the year, but still. remained high compared to previous few years. These global
trends contributed to inflationary. pressures in the country.

With inflatioh at muiti-decadé highs in many countries, ‘policymakers in advanced economies. have pivoted
toward tightening of their monetary policies through reduction of their balance shéets and aggressive interest
rate hikes. In the event of global recession, which might: be triggered by such tightening, deémand for
hydrocarbons will fall, which would negatively impact Azerbaijan economy.

During 2022, global rating agencies have revised up growth forecast for Azerbaijan and upgraded Azerhauanl
Government’s. credit rating by one notch. The upgrade reflects the effectiveness of economic pelicy in recent
yedrs, exgresseéd in better fiscal management and greater ability to absorb future disruptions during the post
pandemic period. Fiscal perfarmance fefnains strong and is 1mpr0\nng faster than expected, thanks to. prudent
fiscal management amid economic recovery and high hydrocarbon prices,

During 2021 -and 2022, the CBAR continued to maintain stability of the Azerbaijani manat, which was Kept-flat
at:1.7000 for 1 USD: throughout the period. During 2022, the CBAR continued to tighten-its monetary policy,
and, asa resuit refinancing. raté réached 8.25% as at. 31 December 2022 {31 December 2021: 7.25%).

The Group’s management is monitoring economic: developments in the current erivironrment and taking
precautionary measures it considered necessary. in order to support the sustainability and development of
the Group's business in the foreseeable future.

While the Group's management believes it is taking appropriate. measures to support the sustainability of the
Group’s business.in the current circumstances, unexpected further deterioration in the areas described above
-could negatively affect the Group's resulis and-financial positior in @ manner not currently determinable.

The accompanying censolidated financial statements do not incliide any - adjustments that may result from
the future clarification of these uncertainties. Such adjustments, if any, will be reportediin the period whén they
become known and esﬁmable

Legal proceedings

_On the basis of its own estimates and both internal ‘and external professional advicé management is of
the opinion that no material losses will be incurred in-respect of claims in excess of provisions. that have been
made in these consolidated financial statements.

Tax legislation

Azerbaijan tax, currency and customs legisiation is subject to varying interpretations, and changes, which may
oceur frequently Management's interpretation of such legislation as applied to the transactions and activity of
the Group may be challenged by the relevant authorities.

The Group's management ‘believes, that its interpretation of the relevant legislation is appropriate and

the Group's tax, currency legislation and customs positions will be sustained and potential tax liabilities of
the Group will not éxceed the amounts recorded in these’ consolldated financial statements.
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24. Contingencies, commitments and operating risks {continued)

Environmental matters

The: enforcement of envirohmental regulation. in- the Azerbaijan Republic is evolving and the enforcement

posture of government authorities is cantinually being reconsidered. The Group periodically evaluates its

obligations under environmental regulations, As obligaticns are: determlned they are recognised.immediately,

Potential liabilities, which might arise as a result of changes in existing regutations, civil litigation or legislation,

cannot be estimated but could be material. In the current enforcement climate under existing Ieglslation
management believes that there are no s;gnlfcant liabilities for environmental damages.

The Greup is subject {0 numerous. naticnal and local environmerital laws. and regulations concerning its
products, operations and other activities. These faws and regulations. may require the Group-to take future

action to remediate the effects-on the environment of the Group's operations. Such contlngent:ies may exist
for various waste disposa! sites. {n-addition, the Group may. have obligations relating to prior asset sales or

closed facilities. The ultimate requirement for rémediation-and its cost are inherently difficult to estimate: While
the amounts of future costs could be srgnlflcant and could be material to the Group's results of operations.in
the period in which they are recognised, it is not practical to estimate the amounts involved. The Group does
not expect these costs.to-have a material effect on the Group's financiat position or liquidity.

Conflict between the Russia and Ukraine

In February 2022, due fo the conflict between the Russia and Ukraine, nimerous sanctions. have' been

-announced by majority of western counirigs against the Russia. As of 31 December 2022, the Group’s total

receivable from Russian companies amounted td AZN 10,028 and ECL recognized for receivables outstanding
fram Russian companies was equal to AZN 2,572:

The Group's. management s monitoring the economic situation in the current -environment and taking

precautionary measures it considers necessary in order to supportt the liquidity of the Group's asssts in

the foreseeable future.

25. Events after the reporting date

In-March 2023 the Company issued USD: 100 million domestic bonds (*Bonds”} with a maturity of 5 years. The
Bonds bear interest rate of & % per annum payable semi-annually gach year until maturity. The Bofids mature
on 3 March 2028 and are listed in domestic stock excliange. The Company wili use proceéds from the Bonds
for acquisition of 3 hew vessels which will be operated in the Black Sea region.
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